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As we welcome Queen’s 21st Principal and Vice-Chancellor, Dr. Patrick Deane, to campus, it’s a poignant time for the
University community to celebrate the progress we have made over the past 10 years during Dr. Daniel Woolf’s tenure as
principal, and to look ahead with renewed focus on our core academic mission of excellence in teaching, research, and service
to our communities.

A key driver in the Queen’s University Strategic Framework is Financial Sustainability. As these Consolidated Financial
Statements detail, Queen's had another successful financial year, achieving a surplus in fiscal 2019. This surplus was primarily
the result of favourable investment returns along with higher than anticipated student enrolments, and it reflects the efforts of
faculties and shared services to help the University manage its finances.

The 2018-19 surplus is largely built upon investment returns that can be volatile, and it does not reflect projected negative
effects on our revenue in the coming years. 

Over the next few years Queen’s will be managing a number of financial risks, beginning with the impact of the provincial
tuition cut, which will result in a decrease in previously projected operating revenue of approximately $70 million over this year
and next. At the same time, Queen’s relies on the government for grant support, and the University faces uncertainty regarding
the prospect of future enrolment growth under the next Strategic Mandate Agreement, which is yet to be negotiated. 

In terms of our infrastructure, Queen’s faces ongoing and significant costs associated with the upkeep of our aging buildings
and facilities which house our faculty and students, with deferred maintenance costs estimated at more than $344 million over
the next five years. 

Managing these risks will remain a priority for the University as we continue our focus on initiatives to build a more diverse
and inclusive Queen’s community, to continue to invest in faculty renewal and services to support student success, and to
advance our leadership in sustainability locally and beyond. 

Progress was made over the past year in addressing specific financial risks, with significant strides towards creating a jointly
sponsored pension plan for the Ontario university sector, and with the opening of our stunning new innovation and wellness
facility, Mitchell Hall, which addressed a portion of the deferred maintenance backlog. Queen’s is also continuing its strategic
investment in faculty renewal with our ambitious initiative to hire 200 new faculty over five years in support of teaching and
research.

As Principal Deane returns to Queen’s, we look forward to the excitement and invigoration of our campus as he connects with
students, faculty, and staff in charting a path forward, supported by our current positive financial position.

Donna Janiec, CPA, CA
Vice-Principal (Finance and Administration)

Financial Statements 2
Year ended April 30, 2019
Queen's University at Kingston



7+( <($5 ,1 5(9,(: 
 
,Q         WKH 8QLYHUVLW\ FRPSOHWHG WKH \HDU LQ D VWDEOH ILQDQFLDO SRVLWLRQ ZLWK D VXUSOXV RI        PLOOLRQ  GULYHQ SULPDULO\ 

E\ KLJKHU WKDQ SODQQHG VWXGHQW HQUROPHQW  IDYRXUDEOH LQYHVWPHQW UHWXUQV DQG WKH HIIRUWV DFURVV WKH 8QLYHUVLW\ WR FRQVWUDLQ 

FRVWV  
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$W D JODQFH«  
7RWDO  UHYHQXHV  JUHZ  E\      SHU  FHQW 

GXH  ODUJHO\  WR  KLJKHU  HQUROPHQW  

IDYRXUDEOH  LQYHVWPHQW  UHWXUQV  DQG 

LQFUHDVHG  UHVHDUFK  JUDQWV  DQG 

FRQWUDFWV   7KH  PDMRULW\  RI  RSHUDWLQJ 
JUDQWV LV IURP WKH 0LQLVWU\ RI 7UDLQLQJ 

&ROOHJHV  DQG  8QLYHUVLWLHV   07&8    

7KHUH DUH QR VLJQLILFDQW FKDQJHV LQ WKH 

RSHUDWLQJ  JUDQWV  IURP  WKH  SULRU  \HDU   

1RWH  WKDW  DOO  UHYHQXHV  WKDW  DUH 

H[WHUQDOO\  UHVWULFWHG   H J  UHVHDUFK 

JUDQWV RU GRQDWLRQV  DUH RQO\ UHFRUGHG 

ZKHQ  WKH  UHODWHG  H[SHQGLWXUHV  RFFXU 

DQG  WKXV  KDYH  QR  LPSDFW  RQ  WKH 

RSHUDWLQJ VXUSOXV  

 
 

 
6WXGHQW IHHV 
6WXGHQW IHH UHYHQXH LQFOXGHV WXLWLRQ IHHV DV ZHOO DV RWKHU 

IHHV  UHODWHG  WR  DFWLYLWLHV  VXFK  DV  VWXGHQW  KHDOWK  

UHFUHDWLRQ  DQG DWKOHWLFV  ,Q          VWXGHQW IHH UHYHQXH 

IURP  DOO  IHH  VRXUFHV  LQFUHDVHG  E\      SHU  FHQW   GULYHQ 

SULPDULO\  E\  HQUROPHQW  LQFUHDVHV  LQ  ERWK  GHJUHH  DQG 

QRQ GHJUHH  SURJUDPV   GRPHVWLF LQWHUQDWLRQDO  VWXGHQW 

PL[  DQG %RDUG RI 7UXVWHH DSSURYHG IHH LQFUHDVHV ZLWKLQ 

WKH SURYLQFLDO WXLWLRQ IUDPHZRUN  6WXGHQW HQUROPHQW IRU 

WKH SDVW WKUHH \HDUV LV GLVSOD\HG LQ WKH FKDUW WR WKH ULJKW  

 
7KH  8QLYHUVLW\  RSHUDWHG  XQGHU  WKH  WXLWLRQ  SROLF\ 

IUDPHZRUN  RULJLQDOO\  DQQRXQFHG  E\  WKH  SURYLQFLDO 

JRYHUQPHQW LQ 0DUFK      DQG H[WHQGHG WR LQFOXGH WKH 

         ILVFDO  \HDU   7KLV  WXLWLRQ  SROLF\  IUDPHZRUN 

UHVWULFWHG  DJJUHJDWH  WXLWLRQ  IHH  LQFUHDVHV  DFURVV  DOO 

GRPHVWLF  HOLJLEOH  IXQGHG  SURJUDPV  WR     SHU  FHQW 

DQQXDOO\  ,Q  -DQXDU\         D  QHZ  WXLWLRQ  SROLF\ 

IUDPHZRUN ZDV  DQQRXQFHG ZKLFK ZLOO GHFUHDVH  WXLWLRQ 

IRU DOO GRPHVWLF HOLJLEOH IXQGHG SURJUDPV E\     IRU WKH 

        ILVFDO \HDU DQG WKH IHHV ZLOO EH KHOG IODW IRU WKH 

        ILVFDO \HDU  
 

      
 )LJXUHV LQFOXGH QRQ FUHGLW DQG H[FKDQJH VWXGHQWV   
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5HVHDUFK JUDQWV DQG FRQWUDFWV 
5HVHDUFK JUDQWV DQG FRQWUDFWV DUH UHFHLYHG IURP D 

YDULHW\ RI  VRXUFHV ZLWK  WKH  ODUJHVW  FRQWULEXWLRQV 

FRPLQJ IURP WKH IHGHUDO JRYHUQPHQW WKURXJK WKH 

7UL $JHQFLHV  DQG  WKH  &DQDGD  )RXQGDWLRQ  IRU 

,QQRYDWLRQ   &),    %HFDXVH  UHVHDUFK  IXQGLQJ  LV 

UHVWULFWHG  IRU  SXUSRVHV  VSHFLILHG  E\  WKH  IXQGLQJ 

DJHQF\  UHYHQXH LV RQO\ UHFRUGHG ZKHQ WKH UHODWHG 

H[SHQGLWXUH RFFXUV  8QVSHQW H[WHUQDOO\ VSRQVRUHG 

UHVHDUFK PRQLHV DUH UHFRUGHG RQ WKH VWDWHPHQW RI 

ILQDQFLDO  SRVLWLRQ  DV  GHIHUUHG  UHYHQXH  $V  VXFK  

WKH  LQFUHDVHG  UHYHQXH  LQ  UHVHDUFK  JUDQWV  DQG 

FRQWUDFWV  DUH  QRW  D  FRQWULEXWLQJ  IDFWRU  WR  WKH 

8QLYHUVLW\¶V VXUSOXV   

 

5HVHDUFK JUDQW DQG FRQWUDFW UHYHQXHV UHFHLYHG E\ 

IXQGHU LV SUHVHQWHG LQ WKH FKDUW WR WKH ULJKW  7KLV 

FKDUW  LV  SUHVHQWHG  RQ  D  FDVK  EDVLV  EHIRUH  DQ\ 

DGMXVWPHQW  IRU  IXQGV  GHIHUUHG  IRU  VSHQGLQJ  LQ 

IXWXUH \HDUV  &DVK UHFHLYHG IURP FRUSRUDWH  RWKHU 

JRYHUQPHQW  JUDQWV   DQG  7UL $JHQFLHV  IXQGLQJ 

VRXUFHV  LQFUHDVHG  VLJQLILFDQWO\  LQ            GXH 

PDLQO\  WR    LQFUHDVHG  FOLQLFDO  WULDOV  IXQGLQJ 

 LQFOXGHG  LQ  FRUSRUDWH    IHGHUDO  DQG  SURYLQFLDO 

IXQGLQJ  RI  &DQDGD  )RXQGDWLRQ  IRU  ,QQRYDWLRQ 

LQIUDVWUXFWXUH  SURMHFWV  DQG  WKH  &DQDGD  )LUVW 

5HVHDUFK ([FHOOHQFH )XQG  &)5()  SURJUDP    

 

 

 
 
 
$QFLOODU\ UHYHQXHV 
$QFLOODU\ RSHUDWLRQV LQFOXGH EXVLQHVV XQLWV WKDW 

SURYLGH  JRRGV  DQG  VHUYLFHV  WR  WKH  8QLYHUVLW\ 

FRPPXQLW\  7KHVH XQLWV  DUH H[SHFWHG  WR FRYHU 

WKHLU  IXOO RSHUDWLQJ FRVWV   DQG PD\ DOVR GHIUD\ 

JHQHUDO RSHUDWLQJ H[SHQGLWXUHV  7KH WDEOH WR WKH 

ULJKW SURYLGHV D EUHDNGRZQ RI UHYHQXHV LQ WKH 

$QFLOODU\  IXQG  E\  DQFLOODU\  RSHUDWLRQV  

$QFLOODU\ UHYHQXH FRQWLQXHV WR LQFUHDVH GXH WR  

WKH  UHVLGHQFH  IHH  LQFUHDVH  DSSURYHG  IRU       
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,QYHVWPHQW LQFRPH 
%RWK  WKH  3RROHG  (QGRZPHQW  )XQG  DQG  WKH  3RROHG  ,QYHVWPHQW  )XQG  DUH  LQYHVWHG  LQ  DFFRUGDQFH  ZLWK  %RDUG  DSSURYHG 

6WDWHPHQWV RI ,QYHVWPHQW 3ROLFLHV DQG 3URFHGXUHV ZKLFK HVWDEOLVK ULVN DQG UHWXUQ REMHFWLYHV IRU HDFK )XQG  :KLOH WKH DLP RI 

WKHVH  REMHFWLYHV  LV  WR  SURGXFH  VWHDG\  DQG  SUHGLFWDEOH  LQYHVWPHQW  UHWXUQV  RYHU  WKH  PHGLXP  DQG RU  ORQJ  WHUP   WKHUH  LV 

FRQVLGHUDEOH YRODWLOLW\ LQ LQYHVWPHQW UHWXUQV RQ DQ DQQXDO EDVLV  ,QYHVWPHQW LQFRPH IRU         LQFUHDVHG VLJQLILFDQWO\ IURP 

      PLOOLRQ LQ         WR       PLOOLRQ  $QQXDO UDWHV RI UHWXUQ IRU WKH ODVW WHQ \HDUV IRU WKH 3RROHG (QGRZPHQW )XQG DQG 

WKH 3RROHG ,QYHVWPHQW )XQG DUH SUHVHQWHG EHORZ    

 

 
 

%HFDXVH EXVLQHVV XQLWV UHO\ KHDYLO\ RQ WKH DQQXDO SD\RXW IURP WKH 3RROHG (QGRZPHQW )XQG RI DSSUR[LPDWHO\     PLOOLRQ  

WKH SD\RXW FDOFXODWLRQ LV VPRRWKHG DQG PLWLJDWHV WKH LPSDFW RI DQ\ YRODWLOLW\ LQ LQYHVWPHQW LQFRPH IURP \HDU WR \HDU  ,Q \HDUV 

RI VWURQJ LQYHVWPHQW UHWXUQV  H[FHVV JDLQV DUH UH LQYHVWHG LQ WKH SUHVHUYDWLRQ RI FDSLWDO WR RIIVHW \HDUV ZKHUH WKH DPRXQW PDGH 

DYDLODEOH IRU VSHQGLQJ H[FHHGV LQYHVWPHQW LQFRPH    
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(PSOR\HH *URXS   8QLW   $VVRFLDWLRQ   &RQWUDFW HIIHFWLYH XQWLO 

$FDGHPLF $VVLVWDQWV   86:           $XJXVW      

$OOLHG +HDOWK &DUH 3URIHVVLRQDOV  )DPLO\ +HDOWK 7HDP    236(8       -XQH      

*HQHUDO 6XSSRUW 6WDII   86:        'HFHPEHU      

*UDGXDWH 7HDFKLQJ $VVLVWDQWV DQG 7HDFKLQJ )HOORZV   36$&      8QLW     $SULO      

.LQJVWRQ +HDWLQJ   0DLQWHQDQFH :RUNHUV   &83(       -XQH      

.LQJVWRQ 7HFKQLFLDQV   &83(       -XQH      

/LEUDU\ 7HFKQLFLDQV   &83(        -XQH      

3RVW 'RFWRUDO )HOORZV   36$&      8QLW     -XQH      

4XHHQ¶V 8QLYHUVLW\ )DFXOW\ $VVRFLDWLRQ   48)$   -XQH      

5HJLVWHUHG 1XUVHV DQG 1XUVH 3UDFWLWLRQHUV  )DPLO\ +HDOWK 7HDP    21$      0DUFK      

 

 
 
6$/$5,(6 $1' %(1(),76 

   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
$W D JODQFH« 
7RWDO H[SHQVHV LQFUHDVHG E\    SHU FHQW LQ          

GULYHQ E\ DQ LQFUHDVH LQ H[SHQVHV UHODWHG WR VDODULHV 

DQG EHQHILWV DQG VXSSOLHV DQG VHUYLFHV  7KH PDMRULW\ 

RI WKH LQFUHDVH LQ VXSSOLHV DQG VHUYLFHV UHODWH WR D 

JHQHURXV GRQDWLRQ RI DUWZRUN DQG DQ LQFUHDVH LQ 

VSHQGLQJ LQ UHVHDUFK DFWLYLWLHV   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
$W D JODQFH« 
6DODULHV  DQG  EHQHILWV  FRPSULVH  RYHU  KDOI  RI  WKH  WRWDO 

H[SHQVHV RI WKH 8QLYHUVLW\ DQG LQFUHDVHV DUH LQIOXHQFHG 

E\  FROOHFWLYH  DJUHHPHQW  QHJRWLDWLRQV    DQG  VWDII  DQG 

IDFXOW\ FRPSOHPHQW   

 

7KH  PDMRULW\  RI  HPSOR\HHV  DUH  FRYHUHG  E\  YDULRXV 

FROOHFWLYH  DJUHHPHQWV   7KH  WDEOH  EHORZ  SURYLGHV  D 

VXPPDU\  RI  HPSOR\HH  JURXSV  DQG  WKH  GDWH  RI  WKHLU 

DVVRFLDWHG HPSOR\HH FRQWUDFWV  

 

 

,Q          VDODULHV DQG EHQHILWV JUHZ E\   SHU FHQW  *URZWK LQ WKH \HDU LV GXH WR QHJRWLDWHG VDODU\ LQFUHDVHV DV ZHOO DV DQ 

LQFUHDVH  LQ  VWDII  DV  IDFXOWLHV  DQG  VFKRROV  FRQWLQXH  WR  VXSSRUW  SURJUDP  GHYHORSPHQW  DQG  UHYHQXH  JHQHUDWLRQ  DFURVV  WKH 

8QLYHUVLW\  DQG UHIOHFWV WKH EHJLQQLQJ RI 4XHHQ¶V IDFXOW\ UHQHZDO SODQ WR KLUH     QHZ IDFXOW\ PHPEHUV RYHU ILYH \HDUV    

 

+LJKHU UHWXUQV LQ WKH SHQVLRQ SODQ GXULQJ WKH \HDU LQFUHDVHG WKH SHQVLRQ SODQ DVVHW DV DW $SULO           RQ D JRLQJ FRQFHUQ 

YDOXDWLRQ EDVLV   
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&$3,7$/ 352-(&76  
 
,Q WKH         ILVFDO \HDU WKH 8QLYHUVLW\ FRQWLQXHG ZLWK \HDU WKUHH RI GHYHORSPHQW RI WZR VLJQLILFDQW FDSLWDO SURMHFWV ± WKH 

FUHDWLRQ RI 0LWFKHOO +DOO  D FHQWUH IRU ZHOOQHVV DQG LQQRYDWLRQ  DQG D UHYLWDOL]DWLRQ RI FDPSXV ELRPHGLFDO UHVHDUFK IDFLOLWLHV  

7KHVH  SURMHFWV  ZHUH  IXQGHG  E\  D       PLOOLRQ  LQYHVWPHQW  IURP  WKH  *RYHUQPHQW  RI  &DQDGD  XQGHU  WKH  3RVW 6HFRQGDU\ 

,QVWLWXWLRQV 6WUDWHJLF ,QYHVWPHQW )XQG  DORQJ ZLWK WKH FRQWULEXWLRQV RI D QXPEHU RI EHQHIDFWRUV DQG D      PLOOLRQ LQYHVWPHQW 

IURP WKH *RYHUQPHQW RI 2QWDULR  7KHVH LPSRUWDQW SURMHFWV ZLOO HQKDQFH LQQRYDWLRQ SURJUDPPLQJ DW 4XHHQ¶V DQG VWUHQJWKHQ 

WKH  8QLYHUVLW\¶V  SRVLWLRQ  LQ  ZRUOG OHDGLQJ  UHVHDUFK  LQ  DGGLWLRQ  WR  HQKDQFLQJ  RXU  VWXGHQW  KHDOWK  DQG ZHOOQHVV  VHUYLFHV   

4XHHQ¶V DOVR FRPSOHWHG WKH :HVW &DPSXV 'LVWULFW (QHUJ\ &RQYHUVLRQ SURMHFW WKDW DOORZV XV WR GHFRPPLVVLRQ WKH VWHDP OLQH 

WR ZHVW FDPSXV DQG UHGXFH JUHHQKRXVH JDV HPLVVLRQV E\ RYHU       07 &2 H SHU \HDU   7KH SURMHFW ZDV IXQGHG WKURXJK 

     PLOOLRQ RI SURYLQFLDO FRQWULEXWLRQV WKURXJK WKH SUHYLRXV &DS DQG 7UDGH SURJUDP  

 

7KH 8QLYHUVLW\¶V  FDSLWDO  H[SHQGLWXUHV  RI        PLOOLRQ  LQ           DUH  SUHVHQWHG  LQ  WKH  WDEOH  EHORZ   ZLWK  FRPSDUDWLYH 

LQIRUPDWLRQ IRU  WKH SULRU \HDU  7KH EXON RI  WKH VSHQGLQJ RQ EXLOGLQJ SURMHFWV DQG FRQVWUXFWLRQ  LQ SURJUHVV  UHODWHV  WR  WKH 

0LWFKHOO +DOO        PLOOLRQ   WKH %LRPHGLFDO 5HVHDUFK )DFLOLW\ 5HYLWDOL]DWLRQ 3URMHFW        PLOOLRQ  DQG WKH :HVW &DPSXV 

'LVWULFW (QHUJ\ &RQYHUVLRQ 3URMHFW       PLOOLRQ   
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$VVHWV RI WKH 8QLYHUVLW\ LQFUHDVHG E\      PLOOLRQ RU   

SHU  FHQW  RYHUDOO   GXH  SULPDULO\  WR  JURZWK  LQ  WKH 

8QLYHUVLW\¶V  FDVK   LQYHVWPHQWV  DQG  FDSLWDO  DVVHWV  

,QYHVWPHQW  UHWXUQV  GRQRU FRQWULEXWLRQV  WR  WKH 3RROHG 

(QGRZPHQW )XQG DQG DQ LQFUHDVH LQ FDSLWDO DVVHWV ZHUH 

WKH PDLQ FRQWULEXWRUV WR WKH LQFUHDVH   

 
 
 
 

 

 

/LDELOLWLHV RI WKH 8QLYHUVLW\ LQFUHDVHG E\ OHVV WKDQ   SHU 

FHQW  7KH VLJQLILFDQW LQFUHDVH LQ GHIHUUHG UHYHQXH DQG 
FRQWULEXWLRQV LV GXH WR DQ LQFUHDVH LQ XQVSHQW UHVHDUFK 

IXQGV   7KH  LQFUHDVH  KDV  EHHQ  RIIVHW  E\  D GHFUHDVH  LQ 

(PSOR\HH )XWXUH %HQHILWV DQG 2WKHU OLDELOLWLHV GXH WR 

VWURQJ LQYHVWPHQW UHWXUQV LQ WKH SHQVLRQ SODQ  )XUWKHU 

LQIRUPDWLRQ RQ (PSOR\HH )XWXUH %HQHILWV  LV SURYLGHG 

LQ  WKH  SUHYLRXV  6DODULHV  DQG  %HQHILWV  VHFWLRQ  DQG  LQ 

1RWH    WR WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV  

 

 
 

 
1HW  $VVHWV  JUHZ  E\        PLOOLRQ  LQ            7KLV 

LQFUHDVH  LV  FRPSULVHG  SULPDULO\  E\  JURZWK  LQ 

(QGRZPHQWV        PLOOLRQ   GULYHQ  E\  LQYHVWPHQW 

UHWXUQV  DQG  GRQRU  FRQWULEXWLRQV   7KH  LQFUHDVH  LQ  WKH 

2WKHU  LQWHUQDOO\  UHVWULFWHG  EDODQFHV  LV  GULYHQ  E\  DQ 

LQFUHDVH LQ WKH FDSLWDO UHVHUYHV      PLOOLRQ   HPSOR\HH 

IXWXUH EHQHILWV UHVHUYH      PLOOLRQ  DQG VLQNLQJ IXQGV 

      PLOOLRQ    5HIHU  WR  QRWH      RI  WKH  ILQDQFLDO 

VWDWHPHQWV  IRU  LQIRUPDWLRQ  RQ  WKH  FRPPLWPHQWV 

DVVRFLDWHG ZLWK WKHVH UHVHUYHV   
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS BY FUND

The University’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit
organizations, described in Note 2 to the financial statements. Under these accounting standards, the financial results of the
University are presented on a consolidated basis, in a single column, and present an overall accounting of the financial
stewardship of the institution as a whole.

University budgets and internal reporting are prepared using the concepts of fund accounting. Under fund accounting, activities
of the institution are segregated by fund to enhance accountability and control of funds. The University maintains the following
funds:

Operating includes teaching and administrative activities at the University. Operating fund revenue includes government
operating grants, student fees, and unrestricted investment income. For information on the performance of the Operating fund,
please refer to the Performance of the Operating Fund section.

Ancillaries includes business units that provide goods and services to the University community and cover their full operating
costs, including indirect costs, and may also contribute to general operating expenditures.

Trust and Endowments capture funds received within the University that are restricted for a particular purpose. Each external
donation received for a specific purpose is usually supported by an agreement between the University and the donor, recorded
in its own fund, and managed according to the terms and conditions of the donation. The capital of endowment donations is
maintained in perpetuity. Investment of endowment capital generates revenue in the form of investment income, which is
available for spending.

Research captures activity on campus related to research. The University continues to be one of Canada’s leading research-
intensive universities. Funding for research is received from a number of sources including the federal government, the
provincial government, and various not-for-profit organizations such as the Cancer Society and the Heart and Stroke
Foundation.

Capital includes activity related to the capital infrastructure on campus. The Capital fund reflects amortization of both costs and
deferred capital contributions, interest on debt to fund capital expenditures, the capitalization of assets purchased through other
funds, the deferral of funding received to purchase assets, and renovations and alterations activity.

Consolidated Entities include PARTEQ Innovations, the Bader International Study Centre, the U.S. Foundation for Queen’s
University at Kingston, the Queen’s Centre for Enterprise Development, the Queen’s University Pooled Trust Fund, and the
Queen’s Prison Law Clinic.

Interfund Transfers, as presented on the consolidated statement of operations by fund, represents transfers of money between
funds. Transfers from the Operating fund are comprised primarily of transfers to the Capital fund resulting from operating
budget commitments, and departmental transfers to the Research fund in support of internally sponsored research. Ancillaries
fund transfers include transfers to the Operating fund to support operations and transfers to the Capital fund for interest on long
term debt.

Financial Statements 10
Year ended April 30, 2019
Queen's University at Kingston



THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS BY FUND
April 30, 2019, 2019
(Thousands of dollars)

The table below presents the activities of the University by fund, for the year ended April 30, 2019, and supplements the information presented in the financial statements.

Operating Ancillaries
Trust and

Endowment Research Capital
Consolidated

Entities Total 2019

REVENUES

Grants and contracts 225,973 - 24,744 173,638 (5,627) - 418,728

Student fees 386,708 - - - - 4,664 391,372

Sales of service and products 9,717 86,597 - - - 3,589 99,903

Investment income 29,787 - 34,919 1,226 8,935 220 75,087

Donations 3,175 - 28,006 - - 588 31,769

Other 22,176 - - 3,452 2,424 82 28,134

Amortization of deferred capital contributions - - - - 24,467 293 24,760

677,536 86,597 87,669 178,316 30,199 9,436 1,069,753
EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits 390,547 11,602 19,913 65,625 - 5,477 493,164

Supplies and services 104,916 3,978 26,230 66,819 (13,751) 1,286 189,478

Externally contracted services 12,930 28,052 764 36,797 - 19 78,562

Student assistance 38,476 - 27,424 230 - - 66,130

Amortization of capital assets - - - - 45,329 1,503 46,832

Renovations and alterations 9,517 11,585 765 792 8,669 (123) 31,205

Utilities, taxes and insurance 16,977 5,416 124 165 - 1,087 23,769

Travel and conferences 10,496 203 1,656 9,050 - 134 21,539

Interest on long-term debt - - - - 13,866 - 13,866

Interfund transfers out / (in) 31,856 25,510 3,307 (8,768) (51,905) - -

615,715 86,346 80,183 170,710 2,208 9,383 964,545
Excess / (deficiency) of revenues over expenses 61,821 251 7,486 7,606 27,991 53 105,208

Transfer (to) / from net assets invested in capital assets - - - - (22,072) - (22,072)

Transfer (to) / from internally restricted net assets (61,718) (251) (7,486) (7,606) (5,919) (1,039) (84,019)

Net change in unrestricted surplus / (deficit) 103 - - - - (986) (883)

Unrestricted surplus / (deficit), beginning of year 517 - - - - (10,051) (9,534)

Unrestricted surplus / (deficit), end of year 620 - - - - (11,037) (10,417)
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7KH 8QLYHUVLW\ PDQDJHV  WKH ILQDQFLDO  ULVNV LW IDFHV DV SDUW RI D EURDGHU HQWHUSULVH ULVN PDQDJHPHQW IUDPHZRUN ZKLFK  LV 

PRQLWRUHG E\ DQG UHSRUWHG RQ UHJXODUO\ WR WKH %RDUG RI 7UXVWHHV  7KH PDMRU ILQDQFLDO ULVNV WR ZKLFK WKH 8QLYHUVLW\ LV H[SRVHG 

LQFOXGH  

 
$ ILQDQFLDOO\ XQVXVWDLQDEOH SHQVLRQ SODQ 
7KH DFWXDULDO YDOXDWLRQ RI WKH SHQVLRQ SODQ FRPSOHWHG DV RI $XJXVW          UHSRUWHG D VROYHQF\ GHILFLW RI      PLOOLRQ  

7KH 8QLYHUVLW\ DSSOLHG IRU DQG UHFHLYHG 6WDJH ,, VROYHQF\ UHOLHI LQ          ZKLFK SURYLGHG IRU D  WKUHH \HDU GHIHUUDO RI 
PDNLQJ VROYHQF\ GHILFLW SD\PHQWV XQWLO          3DUWLDO IXQGLQJ RI  WKH VROYHQF\ GHILFLW FRPPHQFHG  LQ 6HSWHPEHU      

XQGHU WKH QHZ UHJXODWLRQ LVVXHG DW WKH HQG RI 2FWREHU       ZKLFK SURYLGHV DGGLWLRQDO SDUWLDO VROYHQF\ UHOLHI IRU WKRVH LQ 

6WDJH ,, UHOLHI ZLWK D YDOXDWLRQ GDWH RQ RU EHIRUH 'HFHPEHU            

 

(IIHFWLYH 6HSWHPEHU            VSHFLDO SD\PHQWV DUH     PLOOLRQ DQQXDOO\  FRQVLVWLQJ RI JRLQJ FRQFHUQ SD\PHQWV RI      

PLOOLRQ DQG VROYHQF\ SD\PHQWV RI       PLOOLRQ    

 

,Q      QHZ UHJXODWLRQV ZHUH LVVXHG  ZKLFK DUH LQ IRUFH IRU DOO YDOXDWLRQV ILOHG DIWHU 0D\           4XHHQ¶V QH[W YDOXDWLRQ 

LV UHTXLUHG DV RI $XJXVW           DW ZKLFK WLPH WKH QHZ IXQGLQJ UXOHV ZLOO DSSO\    

    

7R GHYHORS D VXVWDLQDEOH SHQVLRQ SODQ DQG WR PLWLJDWH WKH ILQDQFLDO ULVN  4XHHQ¶V KDV EHHQ ZRUNLQJ ZLWK WKH 8QLYHUVLW\ RI 

7RURQWR DQG *XHOSK 8QLYHUVLW\ WR GHVLJQ DQG EXLOG D -RLQWO\ 6SRQVRUHG 3HQVLRQ 3ODQ  -633   WKH 8QLYHUVLW\ 3HQVLRQ 3ODQ 

2QWDULR  833   /LNH RWKHU VXFFHVVIXO -633V SODQ JRYHUQDQFH  FRVWV DQG ULVNV ZLOO EH VKDUHG HTXDOO\ EHWZHHQ HPSOR\HUV DQG 

SODQ PHPEHUV   -633V DUH QRW VXEMHFW WR VROYHQF\ IXQGLQJ UHTXLUHPHQWV   2QFH HVWDEOLVKHG WKH 833 ZLOO EH RSHQ WR RWKHU 

2QWDULR XQLYHUVLWLHV   6LJQLILFDQW SURJUHVV ZDV PDGH LQ WKH SDVW \HDU ZLWK DOO WKUHH XQLYHUVLWLHV DFKLHYLQJ WKH PDMRU PLOHVWRQH 

RI UHFHLYLQJ HPSOR\HH FRQVHQW DW WKH HQG RI -XQH        7KHUH LV VWLOO VLJQLILFDQW ZRUN WR EH GRQH WR PRYH WRZDUGV SODQQHG 

LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ RQ -XO\          ZLWK WKLV UHPDLQLQJ D SULRULW\ IRU WKH 8QLYHUVLW\       

 

7KH WDEOH EHORZ VKRZV WKH FKDQJH LQ WKH IXQGHG VWDWXV RI WKH SODQ RQ D JRLQJ FRQFHUQ EDVLV IRU HDFK RI WKH ODVW WZR \HDUV  

7KH LQFUHDVH RI WKH JRLQJ FRQFHUQ  PDUNHW YDOXH  VXUSOXV RI      PLOOLRQ WR     PLOOLRQ LV WKH UHVXOW RI IDYRXUDEOH LQYHVWPHQW 

UHWXUQV GXULQJ WKH \HDU DQG XQLYHUVLW\ FRQWULEXWLRQV H[FHHGLQJ SHQVLRQ FRVWV GXULQJ WKH \HDU   ,Q           WKH GLIIHUHQFH 

EHWZHHQ WKH DFWXDO DQG H[SHFWHG UHWXUQ UHVXOWHG LQ WKH SODQ H[SHULHQFLQJ D JDLQ RI      PLOOLRQ YHUVXV D ORVV RI       PLOOLRQ 

LQ          7KHVH ILJXUHV GHPRQVWUDWH WKDW LQYHVWPHQW UHWXUQV DUH VXEMHFW WR FRQVLGHUDEOH YRODWLOLW\  EXW DUH D VLJQLILFDQW 

FRQWULEXWRU WR WKH DQQXDO LPSURYHPHQW RU GHWHULRUDWLRQ RI WKH ILQDQFLDO SRVLWLRQ RI WKH SODQ IRU WKH \HDU  

 

,Q  GHWHUPLQLQJ  WKH  ORQJ WHUP  ILQDQFLDO  YLDELOLW\  RI  WKH  SODQ   WKH 8QLYHUVLW\  FRQWLQXHV  WR  IRFXV  QRW  RQ  WKH  SRLQW LQ WLPH 

PHDVXUHPHQW RI WKH SHQVLRQ SODQ DVVHW RU OLDELOLW\  EXW UDWKHU RQ WKH QHHG WR DFKLHYH D SHQVLRQ SODQ GHVLJQ WKDW LV VXVWDLQDEOH 

IRU WKH ORQJ WHUP    

  

 
 

$GGLWLRQDO LQIRUPDWLRQ RQ SHQVLRQ DQG RWKHU HPSOR\HH IXWXUH EHQHILWV LV DYDLODEOH LQ 1RWH    RI WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV    
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'HIHUUHG PDLQWHQDQFH 
0DLQWDLQLQJ  WKH 8QLYHUVLW\¶V  VSDFH  WR  DSSURSULDWH  VWDQGDUGV SXWV  VLJQLILFDQW SUHVVXUH RQ XQLYHUVLW\  EXGJHWV  %DVHG RQ  D 

)DFLOLWLHV &RQGLWLRQ $XGLW  FRPSOHWHG LQ 'HFHPEHU       WKHUH LV FXUUHQWO\        PLOOLRQ LQ GHIHUUHG PDLQWHQDQFH FRVWV 

WKDW VKRXOG EH FRPSOHWHG LQ WKH QH[W ILYH \HDUV  :LWKLQ WKLV DPRXQW  WKHUH DUH      0 RI UHTXLUHPHQWV WKDW ZRXOG RQO\ EH 

GRQH GXULQJ D PDMRU UHQRYDWLRQ  UHSODFH HOHFWULFDO ZLULQJ  KHDWLQJ V\VWHPV  GXFWZRUN  HWF    7KH LQGXVWU\ VWDQGDUG IRU DQQXDO 

GHIHUUHG PDLQWHQDQFH IXQGLQJ LV   WR     SHU FHQW RI WKH FXUUHQW UHSODFHPHQW YDOXH  )RU WKH 8QLYHUVLW\ DFDGHPLF DQG UHVLGHQFH 

EXLOGLQJV  WKH DQQXDO QXPEHU DW   SHU FHQW ZRXOG EH     PLOOLRQ    

 

$QQXDO EXGJHW DOORFDWLRQV WR GHIHUUHG PDLQWHQDQFH KDYH EHHQ LQFUHDVLQJ RYHU WKH ODVW VHYHUDO \HDUV  IURP      PLOOLRQ LQ 

        WR       PLOOLRQ LQ           DQG WKH 8QLYHUVLW\ PDQDJHV WKHVH IXQGV ZLWKLQ D ILYH \HDU GHIHUUHG PDLQWHQDQFH SODQ 

WKDW HQVXUHV WKH KLJKHVW SULRULW\ GHIHUUHG PDLQWHQDQFH QHHGV DUH DGGUHVVHG  6LJQLILFDQW UHSDLUV FRPSOHWHG GXULQJ WKH      

   ILVFDO \HDU LQFOXGH WKH FRPSOHWLRQ RI PDVRQU\ UHSDLUV RQ 1LFRO DQG )OHPLQJ +DOOV DQG UHIXUELVKPHQW RI WKH HOHFWULFDO 

GLVWULEXWLRQ ZLWKLQ .LQJVWRQ DQG *UDQW +DOOV  

 
5HOLDQFH RQ JUDQW VXSSRUW DQG WXLWLRQ UHYHQXH 
7KH 8QLYHUVLW\ UHOLHV KHDYLO\ RQ WXLWLRQ DQG JUDQW VXSSRUW WR IXQG LWV RSHUDWLRQV  ERWK RI ZKLFK DUH FRQWUROOHG ODUJHO\ E\ WKH 

3URYLQFLDO *RYHUQPHQW  7KH 07&8 IRU WKH QHZO\ HOHFWHG SURYLQFLDO JRYHUQPHQW KDV FRQILUPHG WKDW WKH IXQGLQJ IUDPHZRUN 

DQQRXQFHG LQ          DV SDUW RI WKH 6WUDWHJLF 0DQGDWH $JUHHPHQW  60$    SURFHVV FRYHULQJ ILVFDO         WKURXJK WR 

         ZLOO FRQWLQXH LQWR WKH WKLUG URXQG RI 60$ QHJRWLDWLRQV   60$   ZKHQ QHJRWLDWHG ZLOO FRYHU         WR          

:KLOH ZH DZDLW IXOO GHWDLOV  LW LV FOHDU WKDW WKHUH UHPDLQ OLPLWDWLRQV WR IXQGLQJ HOLJLEOH HQUROPHQW JURZWK  DQG WKHUH ZLOO EH D 

VKLIW RI IXQGLQJ WKDW ZLOO EH WLHG WR DFKLHYHPHQW RI SHUIRUPDQFH PHWULFV    

 

$V GHWDLOHG LQ WKH VWXGHQW IHH VHFWLRQ  WKH 07&8 DQQRXQFHG D QHZ WXLWLRQ IUDPHZRUN LQ -DQXDU\       7KLV IUDPHZRUN 

UHTXLUHV WXLWLRQ IHHV IRU DOO GRPHVWLF HOLJLEOH IXQGHG SURJUDPV WR EH UHGXFHG E\ WHQ SHUFHQW IRU WKH         ILVFDO \HDU  7KHVH 

WXLWLRQ IHHV ZLOO EH KHOG IODW IRU ILVFDO          7KHUH KDV EHHQ QR DQQRXQFHPHQW IRU WXLWLRQ IHHV EH\RQG          

 

$V ZHOO  WKH 07&8 DQQRXQFHG WKHLU ³6WXGHQW &KRLFH´ SROLF\  ZKLFK UHTXLUHV VWXGHQWV KDYH WKH RSWLRQ WR RSW RXW RI DQ\ 

DQFLOODU\ IHH WKDW GRHV QRW PHHW WKH PDQGDWRU\ DQFLOODU\ IHH FULWHULD VHW RXW E\ WKH 07&8  7KHVH FKDQJHV UHTXLUHG VLJQLILFDQW 

HIIRUW WR DPHQG EXGJHW SODQV ZLWK WLJKW WXUQDURXQGV  IXUWKHU HPSKD]LQJ WKH ULVN RI IXQGLQJ WLHG WR JRYHUQPHQW SROLF\  
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,Q 0DUFK       WKH 8QLYHUVLW\ ODXQFKHG LWV VWUDWHJLF IUDPHZRUN IRU WKH \HDUV      WR       7KH RYHUDUFKLQJ JRDO RI WKH 

IUDPHZRUN LV WR VWUHQJWKHQ WKH 8QLYHUVLW\¶V YLVLRQ RI FRPELQLQJ DQ RXWVWDQGLQJ VWXGHQW H[SHULHQFH ZLWK UHVHDUFK H[FHOOHQFH   

 

,Q VXSSRUW RI ILQDQFLDO VXVWDLQDELOLW\  RQH RI WKH IRXU VWUDWHJLF GULYHUV   WKH 8QLYHUVLW\ KDV HVWDEOLVKHG PHWULFV WR PRQLWRU DQG 

UHSRUW RQ WKH 8QLYHUVLW\¶V ILQDQFLDO KHDOWK  %HFDXVH XQUHDOL]HG LQYHVWPHQW JDLQV DQG ORVVHV IORZ WKURXJK LQFRPH  WKHUH ZLOO 

DOZD\V EH YRODWLOLW\ LQ WKH 8QLYHUVLW\¶V ILQDQFLDO UHVXOWV    

 

7KH YDOXH LQ WKHVH UDWLRV LV QRW WKH SRLQW LQ WLPH PHDVXUHPHQW  EXW UDWKHU WKH LQIRUPDWLRQ SURYLGHG E\ ORRNLQJ DW WKH WUHQG 

RYHU WLPH  )LYH \HDU WUHQGV RQ WKHVH PHWULFV DUH SUHVHQWHG EHORZ  

 
3ULPDU\ 5HVHUYH 5DWLR  
7KH  SULPDU\  UHVHUYH  UDWLR  KHOSV  WR  GHWHUPLQH  ZKHWKHU  WKH 

8QLYHUVLW\¶V UHVRXUFHV DUH VXIILFLHQW DQG IOH[LEOH HQRXJK WR 

VXSSRUW  WKH PLVVLRQ   ,W VXPPDUL]HV  WKH ILQDQFLDO KHDOWK DQG 

IOH[LELOLW\  E\  LQGLFDWLQJ  KRZ  ORQJ  WKH  8QLYHUVLW\  FRXOG 

IXQFWLRQ XVLQJ RQO\ LWV UHVHUYHV ZLWK QR H[WHUQDO UHVWULFWLRQV  

 
'HILQLWLRQ  ([SHQGDEOH QHW DVVHWV GLYLGHG E\ WRWDO H[SHQVHV 

PXOWLSOLHG E\     

 

1HW ,QFRPH   /RVV 5DWLR 
7KH  QHW  LQFRPH     ORVV  UDWLR  PHDVXUHV  WKH  SHUFHQWDJH  RI 

UHYHQXHV WKDW FRQWULEXWH WR QHW DVVHWV  7KH REMHFWLYH RI WKLV 

UDWLR  LV  WR  WUDFN  WUHQGV  LQ DQ LQVWLWXWLRQ¶V QHW HDUQLQJV  $Q 

LQFUHDVH  LQ  WKLV  UDWLR  LQGLFDWHV  JUHDWHU  IXWXUH  ILQDQFLDO 

IOH[LELOLW\  

 
'HILQLWLRQ  1HW LQFRPH RU ORVV GLYLGHG E\ WRWDO UHYHQXHV 

 

 

 

1HW 2SHUDWLQJ 5HYHQXHV 5DWLR 
7KH  QHW  RSHUDWLQJ  UHYHQXHV  UDWLR  LV  D  PHDVXUH  RI  ILQDQFLDO 

SHUIRUPDQFH  3RVLWLYH FDVK IORZ IURP RSHUDWLRQV  LQGLFDWHV D 

VWUHQJWKHQLQJ  SRVLWLRQ   DQG   FRQYHUVHO\   VWUXFWXUDO  QHJDWLYH 

FDVK  IORZV  DUH  DOPRVW  DOZD\V  DQ  LQGLFDWLRQ  RI  ILQDQFLDO 

SUHVVXUHV    

 
'HILQLWLRQ   &DVK IORZ IURP RSHUDWLQJ DFWLYLWLHV GLYLGHG E\ 

WRWDO UHYHQXHV 

 
9LDELOLW\ 5DWLR 
7KH YLDELOLW\ UDWLR SURYLGHV DQ LQGLFDWLRQ RI WKH IXQGV RQ KDQG 

WR VHWWOH WKH 8QLYHUVLW\¶V ORQJ WHUP GHEW REOLJDWLRQV DW D SRLQW 

LQ  WLPH   7KLV  UDWLR  SURYLGHV  DVVLVWDQFH  LQ  HYDOXDWLQJ  GHEW 

DIIRUGDELOLW\ 

 

 
'HILQLWLRQ  ([SHQGDEOH QHW DVVHWV GLYLGHG E\ ORQJ WHUP GHEW 
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,QWHUHVW %XUGHQ 5DWLR 
7KH LQWHUHVW EXUGHQ UDWLR LV DQ LQGLFDWRU RI GHEW DIIRUGDELOLW\  

,W LQGLFDWHV WKH SHUFHQWDJH RI WRWDO H[SHQVHV XVHG WR FRYHU WKH 

FRVW  RI  VHUYLFLQJ  WKH 8QLYHUVLW\¶V  GHEW   7KH  8QLYHUVLW\  LV 

ZHOO  EHORZ  WKH  VXJJHVWHG  PD[LPXP  RI     WR     SHU  FHQW 

HVWDEOLVKHG E\ WKH LQGXVWU\  

 

(QGRZPHQW SHU 6WXGHQW )7( 
7KH  HQGRZPHQW  YDOXH  SHU  VWXGHQW  )7(  SURYLGHV 

LQIRUPDWLRQ RQ WKH UHODWLYH LPSRUWDQFH RI WKH HQGRZPHQWV 

LQ  UHODWLRQ  WR  WKH  VL]H  RI  WKH  VWXGHQW  SRSXODWLRQ  DQG  LV  D 

PHDVXUH RI WKH ORQJ WHUP VWUHQJWK RI WKH 8QLYHUVLW\  

 

'HILQLWLRQ  ,QWHUHVW H[SHQVH GLYLGHG E\ WRWDO H[SHQVHV 

H[FOXGLQJ DPRUWL]DWLRQ 

 

'HILQLWLRQ  (QGRZPHQW YDOXH DW HQG RI \HDU GLYLGHG E\ 

VWXGHQW )7( 

 
3(5)250$1&( 2) 7+( 23(5$7,1* )81' 
 
7KH %RDUG RI 7UXVWHHV DSSURYHV WKH RSHUDWLQJ IXQG EXGJHW DQG PRQLWRUV WKH SHUIRUPDQFH RI WKH RSHUDWLQJ IXQG WKURXJKRXW 

WKH \HDU  7KH RSHUDWLQJ IXQG UHSUHVHQWHG    SHU FHQW RI FRQVROLGDWHG UHYHQXH LQ            

 

7KH %RDUG RI 7UXVWHHV SD\V FDUHIXO DWWHQWLRQ WR WKH DOORFDWLRQ DQG XVH RI UHVRXUFHV ZLWKLQ WKH RSHUDWLQJ IXQG DQG UHPDLQV 

IRFXVHG RQ DFKLHYLQJ D EDODQFHG EXGJHW  %XGJHWV DUH SUHSDUHG RQ D FDVK EDVLV DQG PD\ LQFOXGH GUDZGRZQV RI FDVK UHVHUYHV 

WR EDODQFH    

 

 
  
)RU          WKH 8QLYHUVLW\ EXGJHWHG D VXUSOXV RI      PLOOLRQ EHIRUH GUDZGRZQV RI UHVHUYHV  +LJKHU HQUROPHQW DQG VWXGHQW 

IHH UHYHQXH  VWURQJHU LQYHVWPHQW UHWXUQV  KLJKHU RWKHU UHYHQXH  ORZHU VDODULHV GXH WR YDFDQFLHV DQG GHOD\V LQ KLULQJ  DQG 

DGMXVWPHQWV WR SHQVLRQ DQG RWKHU SRVW HPSOR\PHQW EHQHILW SURJUDP FRVWV UHTXLUHG IRU DXGLWHG ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV  ZKLFK 

PDNH DFWXDO H[SHQVHV ORZHU WKDQ EXGJHWHG FDVK FRQWULEXWLRQV  FRQWULEXWHG WR DQ RSHUDWLQJ VXUSOXV RI       PLOOLRQ  7KH 

VXUSOXV ZLOO SURYLGH  LPSRUWDQW  IOH[LELOLW\  IRU  IXWXUH  VWUDWHJLF SULRULWLHV   LQFOXGLQJ  IDFXOW\  UHQHZDO  FDSLWDO  UHQHZDO  DQG D 

UHVHUYH IRU IXWXUH SHQVLRQ SD\PHQWV  DQG WR VXSSRUW DFDGHPLF DQG UHVHDUFK RSHUDWLQJ SULRULWLHV     

 

7KH 8QLYHUVLW\ UHPDLQV IRFXVHG RQ PDQDJLQJ LWV UHVRXUFHV UHVSRQVLEO\ LQ RUGHU WR SURWHFW DQG DGYDQFH LWV DFDGHPLF PLVVLRQ 

DQG VWUDWHJLF SULRULWLHV LQ WKH PLGVW RI VLJQLILFDQW ILQDQFLDO FKDOOHQJHV  ,Q 0D\       WKH %RDUG RI 7UXVWHHV DSSURYHG WKH 

        RSHUDWLQJ EXGJHW  ZKLFK LV EDODQFHG DIWHU D       PLOOLRQ GUDZGRZQ RI UHVHUYHV  
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STATEMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE RESPONSIBILITY

The administration of the University is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements and the notes to
the consolidated financial statements.

The administration has prepared the accompanying consolidated financial statements in accordance with Canadian accounting
standards for not-for-profit organizations as issued by the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada.  In order to achieve
the objective of fair presentation in all material respects, the use of reasonable estimates and judgments were employed. The
administration believes the consolidated financial statements present fairly the University's financial position as at April 30,
2019 and the results of its operations for the year then ended.

In fulfilling its responsibilities and recognizing the limits inherent in all systems, the administration has developed and
maintains a system of internal control designed to provide reasonable assurance that University assets are safeguarded from loss
and that the accounting records are a reliable basis for the preparation of consolidated financial statements.

The Board of Trustees is responsible for ensuring that administration fulfills its responsibilities for financial reporting and is
ultimately responsible for reviewing and approving the consolidated financial statements. The Board of Trustees carries out its
responsibility for review of the consolidated financial statements principally through the Audit and Risk Committee. The
majority of the members of the Audit and Risk Committee are not officers or employees of the University. The Audit and Risk
Committee meets with the administration, as well as the internal and the external auditors, to discuss the results of audit
examinations and financial reporting matters, and to satisfy itself that each party is properly discharging its responsibilities. The
internal and external auditors have full access to the Audit and Risk Committee with and without the presence of the
administration.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended April 30, 2019 have been reported on by KPMG LLP, Chartered
Professional Accountants, the independent auditors appointed by the Board of Trustees. The independent auditors' report
outlines the scope of their audit and their opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Dr. Patrick Deane Donna Janiec, CPA, CA
Principal and Vice-Chancellor Vice-Principal (Finance and Administration)
September 27, 2019 September 27, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Trustees of Queen's University at Kingston

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Queen's University at Kingston, which comprise:

 the consolidated statement of financial position as at April 30, 2019

 the consolidated statement of operations for the year then ended

 the consolidated statement of changes in net assets for the year then ended

 the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended

 and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies 

(hereinafter referred to as the "financial statements").

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of Queen's University at Kingston as at April 30, 2019, and its results of consolidated operations, its
consolidated changes in net assets, and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian
accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the ''Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements'' section of our report.

We are independent of Queen's University at Kingston in accordance with the applicable independence standards, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these standards. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises the information, other than the financial
statements and the auditors’ report thereon, included in Queen’s University at Kingston’s A Year in Review (“annual report”).  

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit and remain alert for indications that the other information appears to be materially misstated.

We obtained the information, other than the financial statements and the auditors’ report thereon, included in Queen’s
University at Kingston’s annual report as at the date of this auditors’ report.
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If, based on the work we have performed on this other information, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact in the auditors’ report.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged With Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Canadian
accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing Queen’s University at Kingston’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate Queen’s University at Kingston or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing Queen’s University at Kingston’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors' report that includes our opinion. 

We also:
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Queen’s
University at Kingston’s internal control. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
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significant doubt on Queen’s University at Kingston’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may
cause Queen’s University at Kingston to cease to continue as a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

 Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the group of Queen’s University at Kingston to express an opinion on the financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants
September 27, 2019
Kingston, Canada
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at April 30, 2019
(Thousands of dollars)

2019 2018

ASSETS
Current

Cash $ 161,175 $ 141,967

Accounts receivable (note 3) 31,192 37,115

Loans receivable (note 4) 267 275

Prepaid expenses 4,279 3,586

Investments (note 5) 160,170 113,575

Total current assets 357,083 296,518

Loans receivable (note 4) 2,504 2,807

Investments (note 5) 1,522,785 1,429,033

Capital assets (note 6) 928,108 900,669

 $ 2,810,480 $ 2,629,027

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 
Current 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 7) $ 94,086 $ 115,368

Current portion of long-term debt (note 10) 3,961 3,842

Deferred revenue and contributions (note 8) 277,289 243,708

Total current liabilities  375,336 362,918

Deferred capital contributions (note 9) 439,267 425,896

Long-term debt (note 10) 264,436 268,397

Employee future benefits liability (note 11) 74,818 94,620

  1,153,857 1,151,831

Net Assets  
Endowments (note 12) 1,152,622 1,085,486

Invested in capital assets 221,112 203,046

Internally restricted (note 13) 293,306 198,198

Unrestricted deficit (10,417) (9,534)

 1,656,623 1,477,196
 $ 2,810,480 $ 2,629,027

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Commitments and contingencies (note 18)

Approved on behalf of the Board of Trustees:

Donald M. Raymond Mary Wilson Trider
Chair, Board of Trustees Chair, Audit and Risk Committee
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
Year ended April 30, 2019
(Thousands of dollars)

2019 2018

REVENUES
Grants and contracts $ 418,728 $ 385,347

Student fees 391,372 354,021

Sales of service and products 99,903 95,614

Investment income (note 5) 75,087 47,087

Donations 31,769 15,260

Other 28,134 26,485

Amortization of deferred capital contributions (note 9) 24,760 23,902

1,069,753 947,716

EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits 493,164 464,591

Supplies and services 189,478 150,629

Externally contracted services 78,562 63,730

Student assistance 66,130 63,957

Amortization of capital assets 46,832 44,547

Renovations and alterations 31,205 28,081

Utilities, taxes and insurance 23,769 23,375

Travel and conferences 21,539 19,897

Interest on long-term debt 13,866 13,995

964,545 872,802

Excess of revenues over expenses $ 105,208 $ 74,914

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Year ended April 30, 2019
(Thousands of dollars)

Endowments

Invested
in capital

assets
Internally
Restricted Unrestricted Total 2019 Total 2018

Net assets / (deficit), beginning of year  $ 1,085,486 $ 203,046 $ 198,198 $ (9,534) $ 1,477,196 $ 1,440,378

(Deficiency) / excess of revenues over
expenses - (22,072) - 127,280 105,208 74,914

Employee future benefits remeasurements
and other items (note 11) - - - 14,568 14,568 (73,626)

Change in net assets invested in capital
assets - 40,138 - (40,138) - -

Change in internally restricted net assets - - 95,828 (95,828) - -

Endowment contributions (note 12) 25,533 - - - 25,533 22,168

Excess / (deficiency) of investment
earnings over endowment spending (note
12) 36,303 - - (6,765) 29,538 8,483

Departmental transfers and other
contributions (note 12) 5,300 - (720) - 4,580 4,879

Net assets / (deficit), end of year $ 1,152,622 $ 221,112 $ 293,306 $ (10,417) $ 1,656,623 $ 1,477,196

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year ended April 30, 2019
(Thousands of dollars)

2019 2018

OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Excess of revenues over expenses  $ 105,208 $ 74,914

Non-cash items: 

Amortization of deferred capital contributions (24,760) (23,902)

Amortization of capital assets 46,832 44,547

Employee future benefits (5,234) (14,596)

Net change in non-cash working capital (note 14) 17,529 (3,228)

Cash provided by operating activities 139,575 77,735

INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Net change in loans receivable 311 359

Net change in investments (140,347) (80,807)

Purchases (net of disposals) of capital assets (74,271) (101,270)

Investment gain reported as direct increase in net assets 29,538 8,483

Cash used in investing activities (184,769) (173,235)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Repayment of long-term debt (3,842) (3,727)

Contributions received for capital purposes 38,131 64,893

Contributions reported as direct increase in net assets 30,113 27,047

Cash provided by financing activities 64,402 88,213

Net increase / (decrease) in cash 19,208 (7,287)
Cash, beginning of year 141,967 149,254

Cash, end of year $ 161,175 $ 141,967

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended April 30, 2019
(Amounts in the notes to the consolidated financial statements are in thousands of dollars unless otherwise noted)

1. AUTHORITY 

Queen's University at Kingston (“the University”) operates under the authority of the Royal Charter of 184l and
subsequent federal and provincial statutes. The mission of the University includes post-secondary and graduate education,
research and community service. The University is a registered charity and is therefore, under section 149 of the Income
Tax Act (Canada), exempt from payment of income tax.

The University controls PARTEQ Innovations, the Bader International Study Centre, the U.S. Foundation for Queen’s
University at Kingston, QCED Inc., Queen’s University Pooled Trust Fund, and Queen’s Prison Law Clinic. Accordingly,
these financial statements consolidate the accounts of these organizations.

PARTEQ Innovations (PARTEQ) is incorporated by letters patent as a corporation without share capital under the Ontario
Corporations Act. PARTEQ, the not-for-profit technology transfer office of the University, works with researchers and the
business and venture capital communities to bring the benefits of scientific discovery to the public while returning
proceeds to inventors and the University. PARTEQ is exempt from income tax under section 149 of the Income Tax Act
(Canada).

The Bader International Study Centre was established in 1993 to enhance the University's role in international education
and research through the establishment of a meeting place for students, scholars, and professionals from around the world.
The Bader International Study Centre operates in East Sussex, England and is incorporated under the laws of the United
Kingdom as a Company Limited by Guarantee. It is registered as a charity with the United Kingdom Charity
Commissioners and is therefore exempt from tax to the extent that income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable
purposes.

The U.S. Foundation for Queen's University at Kingston was incorporated under the applicable provisions of the District
of Columbia Non-Profit Corporation Act in 1995. The U.S. Foundation for Queen's University at Kingston works to
promote, encourage and foster an appreciation by the American public of the work conducted by the University. It does
this by financing in whole or in part various programs, projects and facilities of the University necessary for the
accomplishment of its charitable and educational mission. The U.S. Foundation for Queen's University at Kingston is
exempt from income tax under section 501(c)(3) of the United States Internal Revenue Code.

Queen’s Centre for Enterprise Development (QCED Inc.) was incorporated under the Canada Business Corporation Act on
February 2, 2001 and began operations on June 1, 2001. QCED Inc. is a wholly owned subsidiary of the University.
QCED Inc. was formed for the purposes of building on the knowledge base of Queen’s School of Business to develop and
deliver knowledge to small and medium-sized enterprises to foster success in this sector. QCED Inc. also supports
academic research activities within the University and within this sector.

Queen’s University Pooled Trust Fund (QUPTF) was established as a unit trust under paragraph 108(2)(a) of the Income
Tax Act on December 17, 2013. QUPTF was established for the purposes of holding in trust, certain investments and other
assets of the Queen’s Pooled Endowment Fund and provide for certain matters relating to its undertaking and governance.
The University is the sole holder of units of QUPTF.

Queen’s Prison Law Clinic (QPLC) was incorporated without share capital under the laws of the Province of Ontario on
November 24, 2014 through supplementary letters patent.  It was originally incorporated on February 23, 2000 under the
name Correctional Law Project. QPLC was established to provide equal access to quality legal services for inmates
incarcerated in the federal penitentiaries in the Kingston area.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended April 30, 2019
(Amounts in the notes to the consolidated financial statements are in thousands of dollars unless otherwise noted)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING PRACTICES 

These consolidated financial statements (“the financial statements”) have been prepared in accordance with Canadian
accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations. The significant accounting policies of the University are described
below.

(a) Accounting estimates 
The preparation of the financial statements requires administration to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. These estimates are reviewed annually and as adjustments
become necessary they are recognized in the financial statements in the period in which they become known.
Significant areas requiring the use of management estimates relate to the assumptions used in the valuation of
financial instruments, the valuation of pension and other employee future benefits, the carrying value of capital
assets, and the valuation of accounts receivable. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

(b) Financial instruments 
i. Investments  

Investments are recorded at fair value. The fair value of investments recorded in the financial statements is
determined as follows: 

1) Short-term notes and treasury bills maturing within one year are stated at cost, which together
with accrued interest income approximates fair value given the short-term nature of these
investments.

2) Bonds and equities are valued at year-end quoted market prices using closing prices. Where
quoted prices are not available, estimated fair values are calculated using comparable
securities.

3) Pooled fund investments are valued at the unit values supplied by the pooled fund
administrator, which represent the University’s proportionate share of underlying net assets at
fair values determined using quoted market prices or alternative valuation methods where
quoted market prices are not available.

4) Limited partnership investments are valued at fair values using values supplied by the fund
managers who are directly investing the funds in the underlying operating units. The fund
managers use a valuation methodology that is based upon the best available information that
may incorporate management assumptions and best estimates after considering a variety of
internal and external factors. Limited partnership investments are only held in the Pooled
Endowment Fund.

ii. Derivative and other financial instruments  
Derivative financial instruments are used to manage market and currency exposure risk primarily associated
with the University’s debt and investments, and are measured at fair value.

The University follows hedge accounting for its interest rate swap which results in the interest expense
related to certain long-term debt being recorded in the financial statements at the hedged rate rather than at
the original contractual interest rate. At the inception of the hedging relationship, the University designates
that hedge accounting will be applied. The University formally documents the hedging relationship between
the hedging instruments and hedged item. At the inception of the hedge and throughout its term, the terms of
the hedging item and hedged item are the same.

Other financial instruments, including accounts receivable, accounts payable and debt are recorded at fair
value upon initial recognition, which represents costs, and are subsequently recorded at cost, net of any
provisions for impairment.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended April 30, 2019
(Amounts in the notes to the consolidated financial statements are in thousands of dollars unless otherwise noted)

Transaction costs incurred on the acquisition of financial instruments measured subsequently at fair value are
expensed as incurred. All other financial instruments are adjusted by transaction costs incurred on acquisition.
Financing costs are amortized using the amortized cost method.

(c) Capital assets and net assets invested in capital assets 
Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at fair value at the date of
contribution. 

Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance. The University’s intangible assets consist of
computer software. Costs that are directly associated with the acquisition or internal development of identifiable
software which will, in administration’s best estimate, provide a future economic benefit are recognized as
intangible assets.

Amortization is provided on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset as follows:

Asset Useful Life
Buildings 40 years
Cogeneration facility 20 years
Equipment and furnishings 5 years
Intangible assets 5 years
Library acquisitions 5 years
Leasehold improvements Term of lease

When completed and put into use, costs of construction in process are transferred to the appropriate category and
amortized in accordance with the category’s useful life.

Net assets invested in capital assets represents the net amount of capital assets funded using internal unrestricted
resources.

(d) Employee future benefit plans 
The University has a defined contribution pension plan, which has a defined benefit component that provides a
minimum level of pension benefits. The University also provides other retirement and post-employment benefits
such as medical, dental and life insurance to eligible employees. Post-employment benefits are benefits provided to
employees on long-term disability.

The University accrues its obligations and the related costs for funded employee future benefit plans based on the
latest going concern funding valuation. The actuarial valuation is performed at least every three years. In the years
between valuations, pension plan results are prepared based on extrapolations of the latest available funding
valuation results. The University has elected to accrue its obligations and related costs for unfunded plans on a
basis consistent with funded plans. Assets of the employee future benefit plans are valued using fair values at the
date of the consolidated balance sheet.

The benefit plan expense for the year consists of the current service and finance costs.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended April 30, 2019
(Amounts in the notes to the consolidated financial statements are in thousands of dollars unless otherwise noted)

(e) Revenue recognition 
The University follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions for not-for-profit organizations, which
include donations and government grants.  Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received or
receivable if the amount receivable can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

Contributions externally restricted for purposes other than endowments and capital assets are deferred and
recognized as revenue in the year in which related expenses are recognized. External endowment contributions and
income / (losses) that impact the capital preservation of externally restricted endowments are recognized as direct
increases / (decreases) in net assets.  Income / (losses) impacting the capital preservation of internally restricted
endowments are recorded as unrestricted revenue and transferred to internal endowments.

Externally restricted contributions for capital assets are deferred and amortized to operations on the same basis as
the related capital asset. 

Pledges are recorded as revenue in the period in which they are received.

Student fees are recognized as revenue in the year courses and seminars are held.

Sales and services revenue is recognized at point of sale or when the service has been provided.

Externally restricted investment income is recognized as revenue when the restriction is met.  Unrestricted
investment income is recognized as revenue during the period in which it is earned.

(f) Collections 
The University maintains a collection of fine art that includes European art, historical and modern Canadian art,
contemporary American and Canadian art, Inuit art, and African sculpture as well as a collection of rare and
historical books.

Contributions of collection items are recorded as donation revenue and expense at fair market value at the date of
contribution. Collection purchases are expensed as acquired. The art and book collections are fully insured through
a fine arts policy. At April 30, 2019, the art collection had a market value of $232,863 (2018 - $208,527) and the
book collection had a market value of $1,091 (2018 - $699) .

(g) Translation of foreign currency 
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are accounted for at the exchange rate in effect at the date of the
transaction. At year end, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to
Canadian dollars at the rates of exchange prevailing at the statement of financial position date. The resulting gains
and losses are included in other revenue.

(h) Contributed services 
Volunteers, including volunteer efforts from the staff of the University, contribute an indeterminable number of
hours per year to assist the University in carrying out its service delivery activities. The cost that would otherwise
be involved with these contributed services is not recognized in the financial statements.

(i) Agency obligations 
The University acts as an agent which holds resources and makes disbursements on behalf of various unrelated
individuals or groups. The University has no discretion over such agency transactions. Resources received in
connection with such agency transactions are reported as liabilities, not revenue, and subsequent distributions are
reported as decreases to these liabilities.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended April 30, 2019
(Amounts in the notes to the consolidated financial statements are in thousands of dollars unless otherwise noted)

3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

Accounts receivable is comprised primarily of balances receivable for research projects and trade accounts receivable,
including tuition net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of $3,410 (2018 - $3,347).

(a) Pledges receivable  
Since pledges are not legally enforceable, they are recorded as revenue on a cash basis and accordingly are not
recognized as assets in the financial statements. The total amount of pledges outstanding and the expected year of
collection are as follows:

Fiscal year

2020 $ 24,735

2021 13,836

2022 10,651

2023 9,314

2024 7,867

Thereafter 9,260

$ 75,663

4. LOANS RECEIVABLE 

Loans receivable is comprised of an amount receivable regarding relocation loans to employees in the amount of  $100
(2018 - $200), microcomputer loans to employees in the amount of $nil (2018 - $54) and a loan to the Kingston Health
Sciences Centre / Queen’s Parking Commission (the "Parking Commission") in the amount of $2,671 (2018 - $2,828). The
loan to the Kingston Health Sciences Centre / Queen's Parking commission the Parking Commission bears interest at 6 per
cent per annum and matures in October 2030. The other loans have varying maturity dates and do not bear interest.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended April 30, 2019
(Amounts in the notes to the consolidated financial statements are in thousands of dollars unless otherwise noted)

5. INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT INCOME 

(a) Investments  
Fair value details of investments are as follows:

2019 2018

Current
Short-term $ 160,170 $ 113,575

Non-current
Pooled Endowment Fund 1,136,802 1,075,064

Pooled Investment Fund 261,707 245,726

Other 124,276 108,243

1,522,785 1,429,033

Total investments $ 1,682,955 $ 1,542,608

Derivative financial instruments, as disclosed in Note 15 are included in non-current investments.

(b) Uncalled commitments  
As at April 30, 2019, a portion of the University’s investment portfolio is invested in private funds managed by
third-party managers (“the manager”). These private funds typically take the form of limited partnerships managed
by a General Partner. The legal terms and conditions of these private investment funds, which cover various areas
of private equity investments and real estate and infrastructure investments, require that investors initially make an
unfunded commitment and then remit funds over time (cumulatively up to a maximum of the total committed
amount) in response to a series of capital calls issued to the investors by the manager. As at April 30, 2019, the
University had uncalled commitments of approximately $26,596 (2018 - $35,156), which will be funded using
funds within the investment portfolio. The capital committed is called by the manager over a pre-defined investment
period, which varies by fund.

(c) Investment income  
Investment income is comprised of the following:

2019 2018

Realized income on investments $ 62,030 $ 70,139

Unrealized gains / (losses) on investments 17,961 (17,678)

79,991 52,461
Investment management fees and transaction costs (4,904) (5,374)

Investment income $ 75,087 $ 47,087
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended April 30, 2019
(Amounts in the notes to the consolidated financial statements are in thousands of dollars unless otherwise noted)

 6. CAPITAL ASSETS  

Capital assets consist of the following:

2019 2018

Cost
Accumulated
Amortization

Net Book
Value Cost

Accumulated
Amortization

Net Book
Value

Land $ 84,158 $ - $ 84,158 $ 86,462 $ - $ 86,462

Buildings 1,236,823 451,953 784,870 1,100,122 423,962 676,160

Leasehold improvements 12,698 7,798 4,900 12,587 7,104 5,483

Equipment and furnishings 181,964 151,841 30,123 200,514 170,899 29,615

Cogeneration facility 15,494 9,323 6,171 15,494 8,549 6,945

Library acquisitions 116,573 114,530 2,043 123,050 120,498 2,552

Software 31,366 31,366 - 31,366 31,343 23

Construction in process 15,843 - 15,843 93,429 - 93,429

$ 1,694,919 $ 766,811 $ 928,108 $ 1,663,024 $ 762,355 $ 900,669

7. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities is comprised primarily of trade accounts payable, government remittances,
payroll related accruals and the present value of future annuity payments. The University’s government remittances
payable at the end of the year were current and amounted to $10,970 (2018 - $12,741).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended April 30, 2019
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8. DEFERRED REVENUE AND CONTRIBUTIONS 

2019 2018

Research funds $ 163,521 $ 129,208

Trust funds 64,815 62,772

Student fees 32,049 28,225

Capital funds 6,052 11,310

Other 8,377 9,024

Gift annuities 2,475 3,169

$ 277,289 $ 243,708

Research funds are the unexpended portion of research grants and contracts received. 

Trust funds are the unexpended portion of restricted donations and contracts and unexpended income payouts from
externally restricted endowments.

Student fees represent fees paid prior to April 30 for courses and special programs offered after that date.

Capital funds are the unexpended portion of funds restricted for future capital expenditures. 

Other deferred revenue primarily represents deferred government funding that relates to the next fiscal year.

Under the now suspended gift annuity program, a donor was able to gift an amount to the University and receive a tax
preferred life annuity in return. The annuity capital reverts to the University on the death of the donor. The deferred
revenue portion represents the current residual value of the donor’s gift, net of the present value of future annuity
payments. 

9. DEFERRED CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 

Deferred capital contributions represent the unamortized amount of donations and grants received for the purchase of
capital assets. The amortization of deferred capital contributions is recorded as revenue in the consolidated statement of
operations. The changes in the deferred capital contributions balance are as follows:

2019 2018

Balance, beginning of year $ 425,896 $ 384,905

Amortization of deferred capital contributions (24,760) (23,902)

Contributions received for capital purposes 38,131 64,893

$ 439,267 $ 425,896
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10. LONG-TERM DEBT 

(a) Long-term debt consists of the following:  

2019 2018

Maturity in
Fiscal Year

Ending Interest Rate
Principal

Outstanding
Principal

Outstanding

Amortizing unsecured bank loan maturing November 1,
2030 2031 variable $ 56,852 $ 60,849

Series A senior unsecured bullet debenture maturing on
November 19, 2032 2033 6.10% 90,000 90,000

Senior unsecured bullet debenture maturing April 1, 2040 2040 5.09% 75,000 75,000

Senior unsecured bullet debenture maturing June 1, 2040 2041 5.10% 50,000 50,000

271,852 275,849

Unamortized transaction costs/bond discount (3,455) (3,610)

268,397 272,239

Less current portion (3,961) (3,842)

$ 264,436 $ 268,397

The University has established sinking funds to provide funds to repay both the Series A senior unsecured
debenture maturing on November 19, 2032 and the Senior unsecured debentures maturing in April and June 2040.
At April 30, 2019 the value of the sinking funds is $102,951 (2018 - $89,333). 

The University has in place an interest rate swap agreement for 17 years which expires in fiscal 2031. Under the
terms of the agreement, the University agrees to receive a floating interest rate on its amortizing unsecured bank
loan maturing November 1, 2030, while paying an effective rate of 3.18 per cent.

(b) Long-term debt repayments  
Anticipated requirements to meet the principal portion of long-term debt repayments over the next five years are as
follows:

Fiscal year

2020 $ 3,961

2021 4,083

2022 4,209

2023 4,338

2024 4,471

Thereafter 247,335

$ 268,397
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11. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS LIABILITY 

The University has a defined contribution pension plan, which has a defined benefit guarantee that provides a minimum
level of pension benefits. The University also provides other retirement and post-employment benefits such as medical,
dental and life insurance to eligible employees. Post-employment benefits are benefits provided to employees on long-term
disability.

At retirement, pension plan members can elect to take a pension payable from the fund that secures the benefit payments
promised by the University sponsored pension plan. Following retirement, this pension payout is indexed based on excess
interest over 6.0 per cent, and pensions are guaranteed not to reduce.

The assets of the pension plan are managed by a number of external investment managers, are held by an independent
custodian, and are completely separate and apart from the assets of the University.

Salaries and benefits expense for the year includes pension benefit expenses of $29,272 (2018 - $24,524) and non-pension
retirement and post-employment benefit expenses of $9,746 (2018 – $9,189). 

The University measures its accrued benefit obligations and fair value of pension plan assets at April 30 each year. 

The discount rate used in the actuarial measurement of the employee future benefit plans obligation was 5.6 per cent (2018
– 5.6 per cent).

The discount rate used in the actuarial measurement of the benefit plans expense was 5.6 per cent (2018 – 5.8 per cent).

Information about the University's benefit plans at April 30 is as follows:
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2019 2018

Pension
benefit plan

Other benefit
plans Total

Pension
benefit plan

Other benefit
plans Total

Accrued benefit liability

Accrued benefit obligation $ (2,141,428) $ (95,768) $ (2,237,196) $ (2,071,930) $ (103,289) $ (2,175,219)

Fair value of plan assets 2,162,378 - 2,162,378 2,080,599 - 2,080,599

Accrued benefit asset / (liability) $ 20,950 $ (95,768) $ (74,818) $ 8,669 $ (103,289) $ (94,620)

Benefit plan expense

Current service cost $ 29,758 $ 3,961 $ 33,719 $ 27,722 $ 3,926 $ 31,648

Finance (income) / costs (486) 5,785 5,299 (3,198) 5,263 2,065

Net benefit cost $ 29,272 $ 9,746 $ 39,018 $ 24,524 $ 9,189 $ 33,713

Remeasurements and other items

Difference between actual and expected
return $ (2,899) $ - $ (2,899) $ 11,455 $ - $ 11,455

Actuarial (gain) / loss on accrued
benefit obligation 2,232 (13,901) (11,669) 55,777 6,394 62,171

Net remeasurements and other items
(gains) / losses $ (667) $ (13,901) $ (14,568) $ 67,232 $ 6,394 $ 73,626

Details of annual contributions and benefits paid are as follows:

2019 2018

Pension
benefit plan

Other benefit
plans

Pension
benefit plan

Other benefit
plans

Employer contributions 40,886 3,366 45,288 3,021

Employee contributions 28,867 - 27,013 -

Benefits paid 111,203 3,366 105,486 3,021

The most recent actuarial valuation of the pension plan was performed as of August 31, 2017, and the results have been
extrapolated to April 30, 2019. The date of the next required valuation is August 31, 2020.  

The most recent actuarial valuation of non-pension retirement benefits was performed as of December 31, 2018 and results
have been extrapolated to April 30, 2019. The date of the next required valuation is December 31, 2021.

The most recent actuarial valuation of post-employment benefits was performed as of April 30, 2019.

Regulations governing provincially regulated pension plans establish certain solvency requirements that assume that the
plans are wound up on the valuation date. During the 2015 fiscal year, the University applied and qualified for stage two of
the public sector pension plan temporary solvency funding relief program. Under this program the University has elected
to defer solvency deficit payments for three years and pay down the solvency deficit over the following seven years.
Payments began in fiscal 2019.
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12. ENDOWMENTS 

Contributions restricted for endowments consist of externally restricted donations received by the University and
contributions internally restricted by the University, in exercising its discretion. The endowment principal is required to be
maintained intact. The University ensures, as part of its fiduciary responsibilities, that all funds received with a restricted
purpose and investment income thereon, are expended for the purpose for which they were provided.

The University protects the capital value of endowment investments using a spending policy designed to meet the
competing objectives of releasing current income into the operating budget and protecting the value of endowment assets
against inflation.

For endowments without sufficient accumulated investment income, temporary encroachment on capital is permitted.  The
encroached amounts will be recovered from future investment returns.

Details of changes in year-end balances are as follows:

2019 2018

External Internal Total External Internal Total

Investment income on endowments $ 63,196 $ 15,259 $ 78,455 $ 39,593 $ 10,269 $ 49,862

Less: available for spending (33,658) (8,494) (42,152) (31,110) (7,958) (39,068)

Excess of investment earnings over
endowment spending 29,538 6,765 36,303 8,483 2,311 10,794

Endowment contributions 25,533 - 25,533 22,168 - 22,168

Departmental transfers and other
contributions 4,674 626 5,300 5,569 424 5,993

Net increase in net assets 59,745 7,391 67,136 36,220 2,735 38,955
Net assets, beginning of year 864,438 221,048 1,085,486 828,218 218,313 1,046,531

Net assets, end of year $ 924,183 $ 228,439 $ 1,152,622 $ 864,438 $ 221,048 $ 1,085,486
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13. INTERNALLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 

Details of year-end balances are as follows:

2019 2018

Operating contingencies $ 184,773 $ 181,915

Unspent research funds 49,792 42,186

Internally financed capital projects (115,449) (111,472)

Sinking funds 102,951 89,333

Capital reserves 104,826 65,250

Employee future benefits

Pension and other benefit plans deficit (74,818) (94,620)

Pension reserve 41,231 25,606

$ 293,306 $ 198,198

In order to encourage judicious expenditure of funds, the University’s policy permits operating and ancillary units to carry
forward unexpended budget allocations, unrestricted donations and investment income to the succeeding years as
operating contingencies.  These funds are held to protect against possible adverse operating circumstances such as changes
to student enrolment, investment return fluctuations and salary cost escalations.

Unspent research funds are primarily overheads or internally funded research grants, which are reserved to support future
research activities and commitments.

Internally financed capital projects are temporarily financed with internal funds until other committed sources are received,
which include any combination of donations, grants or budget allocations.

Sinking funds have been established to fund the principal repayments of the bullet debentures held by the University, as
disclosed in Note 10.

Capital reserves represent amounts set aside for deferred maintenance, capital projects planned or in progress, and other
future commitments.

Employee future benefit balances represent the deficit associated with the pension and other benefit plans, offset by
associated internally restricted reserve balances set aside to fund future pension related commitments.
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14. NET CHANGE IN NON-CASH WORKING CAPITAL 

The net change in non-cash working capital balances related to operations consists of the following:

2019 2018

Net change in non-cash working capital:
Accounts receivable $ 5,923 $ (7,963)

Prepaid expenses (693) 1,582

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (21,282) 15,984

Deferred revenue and contributions 33,581 (12,831)

$ 17,529 $ (3,228)

15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

(a) Fair value  

The carrying values of cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate their fair
value due to the relatively short periods to maturity of the instruments.

The fair value of investments is disclosed in Note 5.

Derivative financial instruments

The notional and fair values of the foreign currency contracts are as follows:

2019 2018

Notional
value Fair value

Notional
value Fair value

US Dollar $ 176,218 $ (1,596) $ 176,395 $ 21

Other 76,918 (396) 86,796 844

$ 253,136 $ (1,992) $ 263,191 $ 865

Fair value is determined based on quoted market prices. The calculation of fair value is based upon market
conditions at a specific point in time and may not be reflective of future fair values. The fair value of the foreign
currency contracts is reported as $(1,992) (2018 - $865) in investments (Note 5). The change in the fair value of the
foreign currency contracts is accounted for consistent with investment returns in the consolidated statements of
operations and statement of changes in net assets.
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(b) Financial risk  

The primary risk exposures for investments are foreign currency, interest rate volatility, and market and credit risk.
The University, through the work of its Investment Committee, has formal policies and procedures in place
governing asset mix among equity, fixed income and alternative investments, requiring diversification within
categories, and setting limits on the size of exposure to individual investments and counterparties. 

Gains and losses on forward foreign exchange contracts are recognized when they mature. The notional amounts of
derivative financial instruments are not included in the financial statements.

The University has entered into forward foreign exchange contracts to minimize exchange rate fluctuations and to
mitigate any uncertainty for future financial results.

16. ONTARIO STUDENT OPPORTUNITY TRUST FUND AND ONTARIO TRUST FOR STUDENT SUPPORT 

Under terms of agreement with the Ministry of Training Colleges and Universities, note disclosure or separate audited
year-end reports are required.

Externally restricted endowments, as described in Note 12, include monies provided by the Government of Ontario from
the Ontario Student Opportunity Trust Fund (OSOTF) and Ontario Trust for Student Support (OTSS) matching programs
to award student aid as a result of raising an equal amount of endowed donations.

The University has recorded the following amounts under phase 1 of the program:

2019 2018

Endowment Funds:

Opening balance $ 68,744 $ 68,973

Transfer to expendable funds (213) (229)

Endowment capital $ 68,531 $ 68,744

Expendable Funds:
Opening balance $ 428 $ 428

Investment income 4,093 3,862

Bursaries awarded (4,306) (4,091)

Transfer from endowment funds 213 229

Expendable funds available for awards $ 428 $ 428

Number of bursaries awarded 1,504 1,358

The market value of the OSOTF phase 1 endowment fund at April 30, 2019 is $115,044 (2018 - $112,098).
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The University has recorded the following amounts under phase 2 of the program:

(for the year ended March 31) OSOTF II OTSS
2019
Total

2018
Total

Endowment Funds:

Opening balance $ 12,357 $ 33,134 $ 45,491 $ 44,542

Donations received - 909 909 729

Transfer from expendable funds 27 210 237 220

Endowment capital $ 12,384 $ 34,253 $ 46,637 $ 45,491

Expendable Funds:
Opening balance $ 109 $ 241 $ 350 $ 435

Internal Transfers to expendable funds - 20 20 -

Investment income 623 1,986 2,609 1,857

Bursaries awarded (601) (1,363) (1,964) (1,722)

Transfer to endowment funds (27) (210) (237) (220)

Expendable funds available for awards $ 104 $ 674 $ 778 $ 350

Number of bursaries awarded 206 539 745 673

The market value of the OSOTF phase 2 endowment fund at March 31, 2019 was $62,452 (2018 - $60,163).

17. RELATED ENTITIES 

This section addresses disclosure requirements regarding the University’s relationships with related entities. The
relationships include economic interest, significant influence, or joint control.

(a) Investment in Parking Commission  
The University entered into a joint venture with Kingston Health Sciences Centre (KHSC) for the construction and
operation of an underground parking garage managed and governed by a joint Parking Commission established by
the parties and including an equal number of commission members appointed by both parties.  In fiscal 2011 the
Parking Commission embarked on a significant restoration project.  The project has been completed, with the
University’s share of these capital expenditures being $3,750 (2018 - $3,750).  The University’s share of the capital
expenditures will be repaid by the Parking Commission over a 20 year period ending in fiscal 2031. The
University’s share of the Parking Commission’s excess of revenues over expenses of $635 (2018 - $587) is reported
in the consolidated statement of operations. The investment in the Parking Commission is accounted for using the
equity method.
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(b) Investment in Cogeneration Facility  
The University entered into a joint venture with KHSC for the construction and operation of a cogeneration facility
governed by a management board consisting of representatives of the University and KHSC. The purpose of the
facility is to produce electricity and steam. The University’s proportionate share of the joint venture is 60 per cent
and KHSC’s proportionate share is 40 per cent.  The University’s capital investment in the joint venture is repaid
from the operating fund over a twenty-five year period ending April 30, 2031. The University’s proportionate share
of the cogeneration facility’s assets, liabilities and operations have been included in the financial statements. The
University’s proportionate share of the deficiency of revenues over expenses for the current fiscal year is $1,695
(2018 - $1,156).

(c) McGill-Queen's University Press  
The University has significant influence in McGill-Queen’s University Press (the "Press"). The Press was
incorporated by letters patent as a corporation without share capital under Part II of the Canada Corporations Act.
The objective of the Press is to stimulate scholarship, research and debate through the publication of materials for
scholars and the community at large. The Press is exempt from income tax under section 149 of the Income Tax
Act. The University is responsible for / entitled to, a 50 per cent share of any deficit / surplus accumulated by the
Press. The University’s proportionate share of the Press’ assets, liabilities and operations have not been included in
the financial statements. The University’s proportionate share of the accumulated surplus at April 30, 2018 was
$249 (2017 - $309).

2018 2017

Total assets $ 2,777 $ 3,297

Total liabilities 2,279 2,679

Total fund balances $ 498 $ 618

Revenues $ 4,684 $ 4,613
Expenses 4,804 4,411

(Deficiency) / excess of revenues over expenses $ (120) $ 202

(d) SNOLAB Institute at Queen's University  
The SNOLAB Institute at Queen’s University (SNOLAB) was created to perform research in particle astrophysics
and succeeds the Sudbury Neutrino Observatory Institute which was decommissioned in 2007. This is a joint
venture of the University and four other Canadian universities. The University’s proportionate share (20 per cent)
of the joint venture’s assets, liabilities and operations have been included in the financial statements (see also Note
18(c)).
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(e) Tri-universities Meson Facility  
The University is a member, with thirteen other universities, of a joint venture called the Tri-universities Meson
Facility (TRIUMF), Canada’s national laboratory for particle and nuclear physics located on the University of
British Columbia (UBC) campus. TRIUMF is an unincorporated registered charity and each university has an
undivided 1 / 14 interest in its assets, liabilities and obligations. The land and buildings it occupies are owned by
UBC. The facilities and its operations are funded by federal government grants and the University has made no
direct financial contribution to date. TRIUMF’s net assets are not contemplated to be and are not readily realizable
by the University. The University's interest in the assets, liabilities and results of operations are not included in the
financial statements (see also Note 18(d)). 

The following financial information at March 31, 2019 for TRIUMF was prepared in accordance with Canadian
public sector accounting standards (PSAS), including accounting standards that apply to government not-for-profit
organizations, except that all property, plant and equipment purchased or constructed for use at TRIUMF and
related decommissioning costs (if any) are expensed in the period in which the costs are incurred.

2019 2018

Total assets $ 54,766 $ 50,147

Total liabilities 9,283 9,095

Total fund balances $ 45,483 $ 41,052

Revenues $ 87,264 $ 95,214
Expenses 82,832 81,630

Excess of revenues over expenses $ 4,432 $ 13,584

18. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

(a) Litigation  
The nature of the University’s activities are such that there may be litigation pending or in prospect at any time.
With respect to claims at April 30, 2019, administration believes that the University has valid defenses and that
appropriate insurance coverage is in place wherever it is possible to do so. In the event any claims are successful,
administration believes that such claims are not expected to have a material effect on the University’s financial
position. Accordingly, no provision has been made in the financial statements

(b) Insurance  
The University is a member of the Canadian University Reciprocal Insurance Exchange (CURIE). CURIE insures
general liability, university property and errors and omissions. Annual premiums paid by the University are
determined by the CURIE Board, on the advice of the actuary. There is a provision under the agreement for
assessments to all member universities if these premiums are not sufficient to cover losses. As of December 31,
2018, the date of the latest financial statements available, CURIE had a surplus of $79,338 (2017 - $81,232).

Additional insurance for automobiles, artwork, miscellaneous property, and major construction projects is
purchased through commercial insurers to provide coverage for losses not insured by CURIE.
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(c) SNOLAB - Asset retirement obligation  
As stipulated within the Constitution for SNOLAB, this joint-venture research project’s assets and liabilities are to
be divided among the member institutions. The agreements also indicate decommissioning costs for the former
Sudbury Neutrino Observatory as well as SNOLAB facility expansions are the responsibility of member institutions
based on their proportionate share.

There are no immediate plans for decommissioning of the facilities or a reasonable estimate of when such
decommissioning may occur. Currently, new experiments are being developed using the facility and
decommissioning is not expected to occur sooner than fiscal 2020. No accrual has been made in the financial
statements. 

(d) TRIUMF - Asset retirement obligation  
The joint venture partners of the TRIUMF joint venture and the Canadian Nuclear Safety Commission (CNSC)
approved a decommissioning plan which requires all partners to be severally responsible for their share of the
decommissioning costs, as well as provide financial covenants to the CNSC for the amount of these costs. While
there are no current intentions of decommissioning the facilities, TRIUMF has complied with federal legislation by
putting in place a decommissioning plan,  including a funding plan. This decommissioning plan does not require
any payments from the joint venture partners. All decommissioning costs are expensed in the period in which the
costs are incurred.

(e) Capital commitments  
As of April 30, 2019 the estimated cost to complete construction in process for the extension of facilities is
approximately $4,856 (2018 - $33,085). These costs will be financed by a combination of gifts, grants, and
allocations from operations. 

The University leases premises and equipment. The remaining aggregate minimum rental payments under operating
leases are as follows:

Fiscal year

2020 $ 3,834

2021 2,829

2022 2,230

2023 1,742

2024 1,600

Total thereafter 4,994

$ 17,229

(f) Other  
In addition to the capital commitments disclosed in Note 18(e), the University has issued letters of credit of $2,620
primarily for capital construction.

19. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year's presentation.
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